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Heidi,
This letter is a summary of my review of project plans for the Granite Esparto plant expansion, and follow-up discussion at the March 8, 2010 TAC meeting.  For this process I reviewed the documents on the Yolo County web site that pertained to the Granite Construction Company proposal.  These documents spanned several years, and many did not deal directly with my specialty in hydrogeology.  My review focused on compatibility of the Granite proposal with existing CCAP and CCRMP guidelines.  I briefly surveyed all recent documents, and spent more detailed time with the following sections before the meeting:

Executive summary

Project description


Final application


Appendices A-I (especially the hydraulics, hydrogeology and slope stability reports)

Granite Exhibit A and Exhibit B (mining and reclamation plans)

This background work brought me up to speed with the details of the project, and we followed with a 2 hour TAC meeting in Yolo County where TAC members asked questions, and representatives of Granite Construction Company provided answers.  I had three basic questions after review of the documents.  My questions and answers from Granite Construction Company are outlined below:

Question #1)  There are documents from a several year period on the Yolo County web site.  Has  the proposal changed over the years?  

Granite representatives agreed that the project has changed.  More recent documents refer to the Test 3 line and work within 700 ft. of the channel.  Earlier documents were for a pit to the north, farther from the active stream channel.  

Comment:  I am satisfied that the more recent documents represent the current proposal.

Question #2) The stream takes a meander to the north where Granite Construction proposes to tie a new berm into the County Rd. 87 Bridge.  This is within the Test 3 area.  Is this a stable configuration?

Discussion from Granite representatives and TAC members focused on the stability of the stream channel and stability of the bank at this point.  The TAC geomorphologist felt that the stream would approach the bridge at more of a 90° angle after the new berm is constructed, and this should lower the erosive force on the new bank.  Granite personnel also reminded me that the modeled velocities at this site are relatively low, and erosion should not be a major issue.
Comment:  I am satisfied with this answer, although if there is any doubt it would be best to err on the side of caution, and add extra reinforcement to the base of the new berm where it contacts the Highway 87 Bridge.  I picture extra armor or rip-rap at the core of the new berm for the last 100 yds.  I would defer to the engineers for any analysis of bank stability.
Question #3)  Will concrete or natural rip-rap be used to stabilize the new berm?  I favor natural boulders wherever possible.
Granite representatives agreed that concrete could be used for the core of the berm, then faced with natural boulders for a better cosmetic look.  These notes will be added to the plan.

Comment: This is a good solution.  Discussion from the TAC reminded me that this will be an evolving process, and if the concrete core becomes exposed because of erosion, this will be a signal to repair the base of the berm.  Granite Construction company will be required to maintain the berm while they mine this site.
Summary:  When the TAC meeting was over I was comfortable with all answers provided by Granite Construction company, and don't see any major impediments to their application.  I would like to see minor notes added to the plans about using natural boulders to face the lower part of the new berm.  With that addition, I am satisfied that the Granite Construction Company proposal meets the guidelines of the CCRMP and CCAP.   The new mining activity falls within Test 3 guidelines, and will provide additional stability to the County Rd. 87 Bridge.
When the TAC meeting was over we got an additional e-mail forward from the Department of Conservation.  This e-mail requests several modifications to the Granite Construction plan, including a geotechnical study of soils and stability of the new berm.  This would echo my second comment, that I have some uncertainty about the stability of the new berm where it meets the Highway 87 bridge.  Additional geotechnical studies would help confirm the stability of this slope.
Please contact me if you have any additional questions about the Granite Construction Company application or my input to the process.
Sincerely,


Tim Horner
TAC Hydrologist

Geology Department, CSU Sacramento

hornertc@csus.edu 
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